Using the Recommended Summary Plan for Emergency Care and Treatment in Primary Care: a mixed methods study

Anne-Marie Slowther,^{1*} Jenny Harlock,¹ Celia J Bernstein,¹ Katie Bruce,¹ Karin Eli,¹ Caroline J Huxley,¹ Jacqui Lovell,¹ Claire Mann,¹ Angela Noufaily,¹ Sophie Rees,^{1,2} Julia Walsh,¹ Chris Bain,³ Hazel Blanchard,⁴ Jeremy Dale,¹ Paramjit Gill,¹ Claire A Hawkes,^{1,5} Gavin D Perkins,¹ Rachel Spencer,¹ Chris Turner,⁶ Amy M Russell,⁷ Martin Underwood^{1,6} and Frances Griffiths¹

¹Warwick Medical School, University of Warwick, Coventry, UK
²Bristol Trials Centre, University of Bristol, Bristol, UK
³Healthwatch Warwickshire, Leamington Spa, UK
⁴Forrest Medical Centre, Coventry, UK
⁵Florence Nightingale School of Nursing, Midwifery and Palliative Care, King's College London, London, UK
⁶University Hospitals Coventry and Warwickshire NHS Trust, Coventry, UK
⁷Faculty of Medicine and Health, University of Leeds, Leeds, UK

*Corresponding author a-m.slowther@warwick.ac.uk

Published October 2024 DOI: 10.3310/NVTF7521

Plain language summary

Using the Recommended Summary Plan for Emergency Care and Treatment in Primary Care: a mixed methods study

Health and Social Care Delivery Research 2024; Vol. 12: No. 42 DOI: 10.3310/NVTF7521

NIHR Journals Library www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk

Plain language summary

The recommended summary plan for emergency care and treatment, or ReSPECT, may help healthcare professionals to make decisions about emergency treatments when patients are too sick to speak for themselves.

What did we want to find out?

How, when and why ReSPECT plans are made and used outside hospital and how they affect patient care.

How did we do this?

We listened to general practitioners, patients and their families, and examined ReSPECT plans in patient records. We listened to staff in care homes, homecare workers and other healthcare professionals. We surveyed general practitioners and the public. We worked with people with a learning disability to find out what support they needed to complete a ReSPECT plan.

What did we find out?

People thought that ReSPECT plans could be a good way to record a person's wishes about medical treatment. They thought that the plan should be made with a healthcare professional they knew and trusted. These conversations need time and preparation, especially for someone with a learning disability. Most people thought family involvement was important. General practitioners told us that it could be difficult to know what kind of emergencies and treatments to discuss and put in the plan.

Most plans we looked at had recommendations about cardiopulmonary resuscitation and many plans had recommendations about other treatments. About half of plans recorded the patient's wishes. It was not always clear who the plan had been discussed with to find out their wishes.

Care home staff told us that they were often frustrated when healthcare professionals in an emergency did not always follow the plan.

What does this mean?

Further research is needed on how to improve ReSPECT conversations so that plans clearly reflect what is important to the individual, and how to help health professionals use ReSPECT when an emergency happens.

Health and Social Care Delivery Research

ISSN 2755-0079 (Online)

A list of Journals Library editors can be found on the NIHR Journals Library website

Health and Social Care Delivery Research (HSDR) was launched in 2013 and is indexed by Europe PMC, DOAJ, INAHTA, Ulrichsweb[™] (ProQuest LLC, Ann Arbor, MI, USA), NCBI Bookshelf, Scopus and MEDLINE.

This journal is a member of and subscribes to the principles of the Committee on Publication Ethics (COPE) (www.publicationethics.org/).

Editorial contact: journals.library@nihr.ac.uk

This journal was previously published as *Health Services and Delivery Research* (Volumes 1–9); ISSN 2050-4349 (print), ISSN 2050-4357 (online)

The full HSDR archive is freely available to view online at www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk/hsdr.

Criteria for inclusion in the *Health and Social Care Delivery Research journal* Manuscripts are published in *Health and Social Care Delivery Research* (HSDR) if (1) they have resulted from work for the HSDR programme, and (2) they are of a sufficiently high scientific quality as assessed by the reviewers and editors.

HSDR programme

The HSDR programme funds research to produce evidence to impact on the quality, accessibility and organisation of health and social care services. This includes evaluations of how the NHS and social care might improve delivery of services.

For more information about the HSDR programme please visit the website at https://www.nihr.ac.uk/explore-nihr/funding-programmes/health-and-social-care-delivery-research.htm

This article

The research reported here is the product of an HSDR Evidence Synthesis Centre, contracted to provide rapid evidence syntheses on issues of relevance to the health service, and to inform future HSDR calls for new research around identified gaps in evidence. Other reviews by the Evidence Synthesis Centres are also available in the HSDR journal.

The research reported in this issue of the journal was funded by the HSDR programme or one of its preceding programmes as award number NIHR131316. The contractual start date was in May 2021. The draft manuscript began editorial review in August 2023 and was accepted for publication in January 2024. The authors have been wholly responsible for all data collection, analysis and interpretation, and for writing up their work. The HSDR editors and production house have tried to ensure the accuracy of the authors' manuscript and would like to thank the reviewers for their constructive comments on the draft document. However, they do not accept liability for damages or losses arising from material published in this article.

This article presents independent research funded by the National Institute for Health and Care Research (NIHR). The views and opinions expressed by authors in this publication are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect those of the NHS, the NIHR, the HSDR programme or the Department of Health and Social Care. If there are verbatim quotations included in this publication the views and opinions expressed by the interviewees are those of the interviewees and do not necessarily reflect those of the NHS, these of the authors, those of the NHS, the NIHR, the HSDR programme or the Department of Health and Social Care.

This article was published based on current knowledge at the time and date of publication. NIHR is committed to being inclusive and will continually monitor best practice and guidance in relation to terminology and language to ensure that we remain relevant to our stakeholders.

Copyright © 2024 Slowther *et al.* This work was produced by Slowther *et al.* under the terms of a commissioning contract issued by the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care. This is an Open Access publication distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution CC BY 4.0 licence, which permits unrestricted use, distribution, reproduction and adaptation in any medium and for any purpose provided that it is properly attributed. See: https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/. For attribution the title, original author(s), the publication source – NIHR Journals Library, and the DOI of the publication must be cited.

Published by the NIHR Journals Library (www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk), produced by Newgen Digitalworks Pvt Ltd, Chennai, India (www.newgen.co).